

HOUSE BILL No. 5485

January 30, 2018, Introduced by Reps. Hammoud, Moss, Cambensy, Pagan, Camilleri, Green, Zemke, Wittenberg, Lasinski, Ellison, Rabhi, Geiss, Gay-Dagnogo and Hoadley and referred to the Committee on Local Government.

A bill to amend 1917 PA 167, entitled "Housing law of Michigan," by amending section 78 (MCL 125.478).

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

1 Sec. 78. ~~(1) Receptacles for ashes, garbage and rubbish.~~ The
2 owner of ~~every~~ **A** multiple dwelling ~~, and in the case of~~ **THE**
3 **OCCUPANT OR OCCUPANTS OF A** private ~~and~~ **DWELLING OR** 2 family
4 dwellings, ~~the occupant or occupants thereof,~~ **DWELLING** shall
5 provide for said ~~THE~~ dwelling ~~, keep clean and in place,~~ **A** proper,
6 **CLEAN**, covered ~~receptacles~~ **CONTAINER** of non-absorbent material for
7 holding garbage, refuse, ashes, rubbish, and other waste matter.
8 Garbage chutes are prohibited.

9 **(2) THE OWNER OF A MULTIPLE DWELLING WITH 4 OR MORE LIVING**

1 UNITS SHALL ARRANGE FOR ON-SITE ACCESS TO RECYCLING SERVICES FOR
2 OCCUPANTS OF THE MULTIPLE DWELLING, INCLUDING PROVISION OF
3 CONTAINERS FOR RECYCLABLE MATERIALS. THE RECYCLING SERVICES SHALL
4 BE CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW AND LOCAL ORDINANCES AND WITH ANY
5 CONTRACT OF THE MUNICIPALITY OR COUNTY WHERE THE MULTIPLE DWELLING
6 IS LOCATED APPLICABLE TO THE COLLECTION, HANDLING, OR RECYCLING OF
7 SOLID WASTE.

8 (3) THE ENFORCING AGENCY MAY GRANT AN EXEMPTION FROM THE
9 REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSECTION (2) IF THE ENFORCING AGENCY DETERMINES
10 THAT THERE IS INADEQUATE SPACE FOR THE PLACEMENT AND SERVICING OF
11 RECYCLING RECEPTACLES AT A MULTIPLE DWELLING.

12 Enacting section 1. This amendatory act takes effect 90 days
13 after the date it is enacted into law.